
NOTICE OF PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND
COUNTY, TEXAS, WILL MEET IN REGULAR SESSION OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS FOLLOWS:

DATE:

TIME:

PLACE:

PURPOSE:

Call to order: Council Chamber

Wednesday, March 26, 2014

6:00 p.m.

Rosenberg City Hall
City Hall Council Chamber
2110 4lh Street
Rosenberg, Texas 77471

Rosenberg Planning Commission Meeting

AGENDA

1. Consideration of and action on minutes of the Regular Planning Commission Meeting of February 26, 2014.
(LeLaurin)

2. Consideration of and action on a Final Plat of Bonbrook Plantation North Section Ten, a subdivision of 12.205
acres of land situated in the Wiley Martin League, Abstract 56, Fort Bend County, Texas; 39 lots, 1 reserve
(0.917 acre), 3 blocks. (Tanner)

3. Consideration of and action on a Final Plat of Bonbrook Plantation South Section Five, a subdivision of 49.784
acres of land situated in the Wiley Martin League, Abstract 56, Fort Bend County, Texas; 115 lots, 7 reserves
(18.984 acres), 2 blocks. (Tanner)

4. Consideration of and action on a Final Plat for Walnut Creek Section Ten, a subdivision of 9.689 acres
containing 42 lots, 2 blocks, 2 restricted reserves, out of the Eugene Wheat Survey, A-396, Fort Bend County,
Texas. (Tanner)

5. Consideration of and action on a revised Planning Commission Meeting Schedule and Submittal Deadlines Calendar
to be implemented by July 2014. (Tanner)

6. Consideration of and action on appointment of a Planning Commission representative to serve on the Business
Assistance Grant Review Committee. (Tanner)

7. Consideration of and action on the Staff Report of Current Activities and Requests for Future Agenda Items. (Tanner)

8. Announcements.

9. Adjournment.

The Planning Commission reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of
this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as authorized by Texas Government Code, Section
551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).

[EXECUTION PAGE TO FOLLOW]

Page 1 of 2



1JJ.MI dayof ~t.k 2014, at 5'10

~~~---
Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary

~-----",--~~Wk~\. _
~stlng:
Robert Gracia, City Manager

P·m. by
I

Reasonable accommodation for the disabled attending this meeting will be available; persons with disabilities in
need of special assistance at the meeting should contact the City Secretary at (832) 595-3340.

Page 2 of 2



ITEM 1 
 

Minutes: 
 

1. Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes for February 26, 2014. 



 

 
Page 1 of 10 * DRAFT REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * FEBRUARY 26, 2014 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
***DRAFT*** 

 
On this the 26th day of February 2014, the Planning Commission of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, 
Texas, met in a regular meeting at the Rosenberg City Hall Council Chamber, 2110 4th Street, Rosenberg, Texas 
77471. 
 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT 
  Pete Pavlovsky   Planning Commission Chairperson 
  Lester Phipps, Jr.  Planning Commission Vice Chairperson 
  Wayne Poldrack  Planning Commission Secretary 
  Alicia Casias   Planning Commissioner 
  Mike Parsons   Planning Commissioner 
  James Urbish   Planning Commissioner 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
  Travis Tanner   Executive Director of Community Services 
  Lora Lenzsch   City Attorney 
  Renée LeLaurin  Secretary II 
 
GUESTS PRESENT 
  Taylor Gunn   Perry Homes (Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section Three) 
  Geoff Freeman  Kerry R. Gilbert & Associates, Inc. (Walnut Creek) 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chairperson Pavlovsky called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON MINUTES OF THE REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING OF 
JANUARY 22, 2014. 
 
Action Taken:  Commissioner Parsons moved, seconded by Commissioner Casias, to approve the 
minutes of the January 22, 2014 Regular Planning Commission Meeting as written.  The motion carried by 
a vote of five “ayes” and one abstention. Ayes: Chairperson Pavlovsky, Commissioners Casias, Parsons, 
Poldrack and Urbish.  Vice Chairperson Phipps abstained as he was not present for the January 22, 2014 
Planning Commission Meeting. 
 

2. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A PRELIMINARY PLAT OF WALNUT CREEK IRBY COBB DR. STREET 
DEDICATION NO. TWO, BEING 3.4 ACRES OF LAND OUT OF THE EUGENE WHEAT SURVEY, A-396 AND WILEY 
MARTIN LEAGUE, A-56, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS. 
 
Executive Summary:  The Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Irby Cobb Drive Street Dedication No. 2 is a 
proposed right-of-way dedication plat consisting of 3.4 acres.  It is located in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) 
and in Fort Bend County MUD No. 152.  It adjoins Walnut Creek Sections Seven and Eleven and will connect 
Irby Cobb Boulevard to its future intersection with Benton Road. 
 
The Preliminary Plat is consistent with the street layout per the approved Land Plan, will provide access 
further east into the development, and will facilitate an eventual second point of access into the 
development from Benton Road.  The proposed Preliminary Plat is not in conflict with the “Subdivision” 
Ordinance, the approved Land Plan, or with the Development Agreement for MUD No. 152.  That being 
said, staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Irby Cobb Dr. Street Dedication 



 

 
Page 2 of 10 * DRAFT REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * FEBRUARY 26, 2014 

 

No. Two provided that on the Final Plat, the street name suffix is changed from Drive to Boulevard per the 
existing street name. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
 
Action Taken:  Commissioner Casias moved, seconded by Commissioner Parsons, to approve the 
Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Irby Cobb Dr. Street Dedication No. Two, being 3.4 acres of land out of 
the Eugene Wheat Survey, A-396 and Wiley Martin League, A-56, Fort Bend County, Texas.  The motion 
carried unanimously. 
 

3. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A PRELIMINARY PLAT OF WALNUT CREEK SECTION SEVEN, BEING 9.6 
ACRES OF LAND CONTAINING 31 LOTS (60’ X 120’ TYP.) AND ONE RESERVE IN THREE BLOCKS OUT OF THE 
EUGENE WHEAT SURVEY, A-396, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS. 
 
Executive Summary:  The Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Seven is a proposed subdivision consisting of 
thirty-one (31) residential lots located off of Irby Cobb Boulevard in the north central part of the Walnut Creek 
Development.  The proposed Plat is located in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and in Fort Bend County 
MUD No. 152.  It adjoins Walnut Creek Section Four to the immediate west. 
 
The subdivision generally consists of sixty-foot (60’) lots in accordance with the approved Land Plan for Walnut 
Creek.  Four (4) of the lots are identified as being less than 60’ lots due to being less than fifty feet (50’) as 
measured at the right-of-way.  All lots are a minimum of 60’ as measured at the front building line.  
Additionally, the subdivision contains a 1.36-acre landscape reserve abutting the future Irby Cobb right-of-
way. 
 
The proposed Preliminary Plat is not in conflict with the “Subdivision” Ordinance, the approved Land 
Plan, or with the Development Agreement for MUD No. 152.  That being said, staff recommends 
approval of the Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Seven. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
 
Action Taken:  Vice Chairperson Phipps moved, seconded by Commissioner Parsons, to approve the 
Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Seven, being 9.6 acres of land containing 31 lots (60’ x 120’ typ.) 
and one reserve in three blocks out of the Eugene Wheat Survey, A-396, Fort Bend County, Texas.  The 
motion carried unanimously. 
 

4. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A PRELIMINARY PLAT OF WALNUT CREEK SECTION ELEVEN, BEING 8.7 
ACRES OF LAND CONTAINING 27 LOTS (60’ X 120’ TYP.) AND ONE RESERVE IN TWO BLOCKS OUT OF THE 
EUGENE WHEAT SURVEY, A-396 & WILEY MARTIN LEAGUE, A-56, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS. 
 
Executive Summary:  The Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Eleven is a proposed subdivision consisting 
of twenty-seven (27) residential lots located off of Irby Cobb Boulevard in the north central part of the Walnut 
Creek Development.  The proposed Plat is located in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and in Fort Bend 
County MUD No. 152.  It adjoins Walnut Creek Section Seven to the immediate west. 
 
The subdivision generally consists of sixty-foot (60’) lots in accordance with the approved Land Plan for Walnut 
Creek.  Four (4) of the lots are identified as being less than 60’ lots due to being less than fifty feet (50’) as 
measured at the right-of-way.  All lots are a minimum of 60’ as measured at the front building line.  
Additionally, the subdivision contains a 1.88-acre landscape reserve abutting the future Irby Cobb right-of-
way.  This reserve should contain two (2) water line easements on the Final Plat to provide for the subdivision’s 
water lines to connect to the main water line in the Irby Cobb right-of-way.  Staff recommends this 
requirement as a condition of Final Plat approval. 
 
The proposed Preliminary Plat is not in conflict with the “Subdivision” Ordinance, the approved Land 
Plan, or with the Development Agreement for MUD No. 152.  That being said, staff recommends 



 

 
Page 3 of 10 * DRAFT REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * FEBRUARY 26, 2014 

 

approval of the Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Eleven. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
• Chairperson Pavlovsky inquired where the waterlines are located. 
• Mr. Tanner indicated the waterlines on the map and stated that waterline easements would be 

needed in order to connect to the infrastructure and Irby Cobb Boulevard.  It would loop the 
waterlines. 

• Commissioner Parsons inquired about the 20-foot transmission easement. 
• Mr. Tanner stated that he believes that is for a pipeline. 
• Commissioner Parsons stated that he assumes there will be full disclosure to the people buying 

those lots that the pipeline exists. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that he suspects that would be the reason the pipeline was kept away from 

the lots with a landscape reserve between. 
• Commissioner Poldrack inquired if there are any regulations requiring a certain distance between 

a residence and a pipeline, dependent on what is flowing through the pipeline. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that he does not believe so and the only buffer would be that easement.  He 

would think the pipeline would run in the center of that easement and the remaining easement 
provides the buffer. 

• Commissioner Poldrack inquired if there are any building requirements calling for a specific 
setback from building near the pipelines. 

• Mr. Tanner replied that he does not believe so.  Just about every subdivision has this issue as the 
pipelines preexist the development.   

• Chairperson Pavlovsky stated that pipeline easements are all over. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that they put these easements in landscape reserves so they do not intersect 

with lots. 
 
Action Taken:  Commissioner Casias moved, seconded by Commissioner Urbish, to approve the 
Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Eleven, being 8.7 acres of land containing 27 lots (60’ x 120’ 
typ.) and one reserve in two blocks out of the Eugene Wheat Survey, A-396 & Wiley Martin League, A-56, 
Fort Bend County, Texas.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 

5. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A SHORT FORM FINAL PLAT OF LAMAR CISD ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
NO. 23; 0 LOTS, 1 BLOCK, 1 RESERVE; BEING 14.26 ACRES IN THE ROBERT E. HANDY SURVEY, ABSTRACT 187, 
CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS. 
 
Executive Summary:  The Short Form Final Plat of Lamar CISD Elementary School No. 23 fronts on the south side 
of August Green Drive, west of FM 2977 and adjoining the site of the City’s Fire Station No. 3, currently under 
construction.  It is located within the City Limits and in Fort Bend County MUD No. 144.  The Plat consists of one 
(1) reserve and 14.26 acres. 
 
Because the Plat has only one (1) reserve and does not require the dedication or alteration of any streets, it 
meets the criteria for a short form final plat under the “Subdivision” Ordinance.  This essentially means that a 
Preliminary Plat did not have to be submitted.  The proposed Plat is consistent with the approved Land Plan for 
Summer Lakes and Waterford Park, which calls for commercial development of this tract (as opposed to 
residential). 
 
The proposed Short Form Final Plat is not in conflict with the “Subdivision” Ordinance, the approved Land 
Plan, or with the Development Agreement for MUD No. 144.  That being said, staff recommends that the 
Planning Commission recommend approval to City Council of the Short Form Final Plat of Lamar CISD 
Elementary School No. 23. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
• Commissioner Parsons inquired when they plan to build the school. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that he expects it would be within the next year and a half as opposed to next 

fall. 



 

 
Page 4 of 10 * DRAFT REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * FEBRUARY 26, 2014 

 

 
Action Taken:  Commissioner Parsons moved, seconded by Commissioner Poldrack, to recommend 
approval to City Council of the Short Form Final Plat of Lamar CISD Elementary School No. 23; 0 lots, 1 
block, 1 reserve; being 14.26 acres in the Robert E. Handy Survey, Abstract 187, City of Rosenberg, Fort 
Bend County, Texas.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 

6. HOLD PUBLIC HEARING ON A SHORT FORM FINAL PLAT OF MYSKA CORNER, 2 LOTS, 1 BLOCK, 0 RESERVES, 
BEING A REPLAT OF LOT 6 AND THE EAST 85 FEET OF LOT 5, BLOCK 2, LOUIS POLKA SUBDIVISION (VOLUME 
241, PAGE 631, D.R.F.B.C.T.) IN THE HENRY SCOTT LEAGUE, ABSTRACT 83, CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND 
COUNTY, TEXAS. 
 
Executive Summary:  The Short Form Final Plat of Myska Corner is located at the northeast corner of 4th Street 
and Bernie Avenue.  It is a replat of Lot 6 and part of Lot 5 of Block 2 of the Louis Polka Subdivision.  The 
subdivision was originally platted in 1947. 
 
Because it is a replat, a public hearing is required per the “Subdivision” Ordinance and Chapter 212 of 
the Texas Local Government Code.  Therefore a public hearing should be held.  Staff has no 
recommendation for this item. 
 
Chairperson Pavlovsky opened the public hearing at 6:14 p.m.  After three calls for speakers, no one 
stepped forward.  Chairperson Pavlovsky closed the public hearing at 6:14 p.m. 
 

7. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A SHORT FORM FINAL PLAT OF MYSKA CORNER, 2 LOTS, 1 BLOCK, 0 
RESERVES, BEING A REPLAT OF LOT 6 AND THE EAST 85 FEET OF LOT 5, BLOCK 2, LOUIS POLKA SUBDIVISION 
(VOLUME 241, PAGE 631, D.R.F.B.C.T.) IN THE HENRY SCOTT LEAGUE, ABSTRACT 83, CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS. 
 
Executive Summary:  As discussed in the previous Agenda item, the Short Form Final Plat of Myska Corner is 
located at the northeast corner of 4th Street and Bernie Avenue.  It is a replat of Lot 6 and part of Lot 5 of Block 
2 of Louis Polka Subdivision.  The subdivision was originally platted in 1947. 
 
The Plat proposes to formally plat two (2) residential lots that were already subdivided by metes and bounds in 
1972.  There is no net increase in the number of units as there is already a residence on proposed Lot 1 and an 
existing mobile home on Lot 2.  The proposed lots meet all the requirements for lot size, building lines, etc., as 
set forth in the “Subdivision” Ordinance.  The Plat also does not render the remainder of Lot 5 out of 
compliance with any requirements.  There is an existing residence on Lot 5 as well. 
 
The Plat meets the criteria for a Short Form Final Plat based on the number of lots and no streets being 
created or altered.  Therefore a preliminary plat submittal was not required.  The Short Form Final Plat is 
not in conflict with any of the applicable regulations.  Staff recommends that the Planning Commission 
recommend approval to City Council of the Short Form Final Plat of Myska Corner. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
• Commissioner Parsons inquired what is on the property now. 
• Mr. Tanner replied there is a residence on both Lots 1 and 2.  They have been configured this way 

for sometime but have never been formally platted. 
• Chairperson Pavlovsky inquired if Lot 2 has access. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that it has access to Bernie.  The existing house on Lot 1 fronts on 4th Street and 

the residence on Lot 2 fronts on Bernie.  
 
Action Taken:  Commissioner Parsons moved, seconded by Commissioner Poldrack, to recommend 
approval to City Council of the Short Form Final Plat of Myska Corner, 2 lots, 1 block, 0 reserves, being a 
replat of Lot 6 and the east 85 feet of Lot 5, Block 2, Louis Polka Subdivision (Volume 241, Page 631, 
D.R.F.B.C.T.) in the Henry Scott League, Abstract 83, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 

8. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON THE FINAL PLAT OF OUR LADY OF GUADALUPE CATHOLIC CHURCH, A 



 

 
Page 5 of 10 * DRAFT REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * FEBRUARY 26, 2014 

 

SUBDIVISION OF 4.6750 ACRES, OR 203,644 SQUARE FEET OF LAND, BEING A PARTIAL REPLAT OF LOTS 1-8, 
11-16 AND A PORTION OF LOTS 9 & 10, BLOCK 8, LOTS 10-16 AND PORTIONS OF LOTS 5-8, BLOCK 5, 
KAFFENBERGER ADDITION, RECORDED UNDER VOLUME 6, PAGE 16, PLAT RECORDS OF FORT BEND COUNTY, 
IN THE HENRY SCOTT LEAGUE, ABSTRACT NO. 83, CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS; 1 
BLOCK, 2 RESERVES, 0 LOTS. 
 
Executive Summary:  This Plat has been modified by the applicant to include unrestricted reserves as opposed 
to the reserves previously being restricted to religious uses.  The Plat still is not in conflict with any regulations, but 
due to the change in use, staff believed it was appropriate for it to come before the Planning Commission 
again. 
 
The Final Plat of Our Lady of Guadalupe Catholic Church consists of 4.6750 acres and two (2) reserves.  
Approval and subsequent recordation of the Plat would consolidate property owned by the Church and 
eliminate any potential issues with setbacks from interior property lines.  The Plat/Replat also depicts the 
abandonment of City rights-of-way (the majority of Carlisle Street between Avenues D and E, and the entire 
alley between Mulcahy and Carlisle) and will facilitate redevelopment of the site with a new sanctuary. 
 
Since the last time the Plat came before the Planning Commission, City Council approved an Ordinance 
No. 2014-06 on February 04, 2014, abandoning the rights-of-way.  Therefore there are no remaining issues 
with the Plat.  Staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval to City Council of 
the revised Final Plat of Our Lady of Guadalupe Catholic Church. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
 
Action Taken:  Commissioner Parsons moved, seconded by Commissioner Poldrack, to recommend 
approval to City Council of the Final Plat of Our Lady Of Guadalupe Catholic Church, a subdivision of 
4.6750 acres, or 203,644 square feet of land, being a partial replat of Lots 1-8, 11-16 and a portion of Lots 
9 & 10, Block 8, Lots 10-16 and portions of Lots 5-8, Block 5, Kaffenberger Addition, recorded under 
Volume 6, Page 16, Plat Records of Fort Bend County, in the Henry Scott League, Abstract No. 83, City of 
Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas; 1 block, 2 reserves, 0 lots. 
 

9. HOLD PUBLIC HEARING ON A FINAL PLAT OF THE RESERVE AT BRAZOS TOWN CENTER SECTION THREE, A 
17.5794 ACRE TRACT OF LAND BEING A PARTIAL REPLAT OF RESERVE “H”, BLOCK 4, THE VILLAGES AT 
ROSENBERG (SLIDE NO. 1945 A&B; F.B.C.P.R.) CONVEYED TO FIGURE FOUR PARTNERS, LTD. (F.B.C.C.F. NO. 
2013159055) IN THE JANE H. LONG LEAGUE, ABSTRACT NO. 55, AND IN THE SIMON JONES SURVEY, 
ABSTRACT NO. 271, CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS; 2 RESERVES, 62 LOTS, 3 BLOCKS. 
 
Executive Summary:  The Final Plat of the Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section Three is located on the north 
side of Town Center Boulevard near its intersection with Vista Drive.  The Plat consists of 17.58 acres and sixty-
two (62) residential lots.  The Land Plan was amended on December 18, 2013, to allow the proposed fifty-foot 
(50’) lots on the tract. 
 
The Plat also constitutes a partial replat of Reserve “H” of Block 4 of the Villages at Rosenberg.  With the 
Land Plan being amended, the Plat is in compliance with all requirements; however, due to it being a 
replat, a public hearing is required per the Chapter 212 of the Texas Local Government Code and the 
“Subdivision” Ordinance. 
 
Chairperson Pavlovsky opened the public hearing at 6:21 p.m.  After three calls for speakers, no one 
stepped forward.  Chairperson Pavlovsky closed the public hearing at 6:21 p.m. 
 

10. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A FINAL PLAT OF THE RESERVE AT BRAZOS TOWN CENTER SECTION 
THREE, A 17.5794 ACRE TRACT OF LAND BEING A PARTIAL REPLAT OF RESERVE “H”, BLOCK 4, THE VILLAGES 
AT ROSENBERG (SLIDE NO. 1945 A&B; F.B.C.P.R.) CONVEYED TO FIGURE FOUR PARTNERS, LTD. (F.B.C.C.F. 
NO. 2013159055) IN THE JANE H. LONG LEAGUE, ABSTRACT NO. 55, AND IN THE SIMON JONES SURVEY, 
ABSTRACT NO. 271, CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS; 2 RESERVES, 62 LOTS, 3 BLOCKS. 
 



 

 
Page 6 of 10 * DRAFT REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * FEBRUARY 26, 2014 

 

Executive Summary:  The Final Plat of the Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section Three is located on the north 
side of Town Center Boulevard near its intersection with Vista Drive.  It is within the City Limits and in Fort Bend 
County MUD No. 167.  The Plat consists of 17.58 acres, sixty-two (62) residential lots, and two (2) reserves.  The 
Land Plan was amended on December 18, 2013, to allow the proposed fifty-foot (50’) lots on the tract.  
Conditions for the approval of the 50’ lots were as follows: 
 

• Minimum house size of 1,650 square feet 
• Minimum of fifty-one percent (51%) masonry exterior 

 
The above conditions are noted on the Plat.  The Preliminary Plat of this subdivision was approved by the 
Planning Commission on January 22, 2014.  The proposed Final Plat is consistent with the approved 
Preliminary Plat.  That being said, staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval 
to City Council of the Final Plat of the Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section Three. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
• Commissioner Poldrack inquired where the canal easement is located. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that it does not go through that development.  There is storm sewer planned 

for the west side of the development. 
• Commissioner Poldrack inquired if there are any plans to cover that rice canal. 
• Mr. Tanner said he does not believe it is in this plat.   
• Commissioner Parsons inquired if this is the same property we discussed in December? 
• Mr. Tanner replied yes, the land plan was amended for this section in December and the 

Preliminary Plat came to you in January. 
• Commissioner Casias inquired if there is only one access point for this plat. 
• Commissioner Poldrack replied that Cypress Grove appears to be the only access point.   
• Mr. Tanner replied that another point of access will be added in Section Four. 

 
Action Taken:  Commissioner Parsons moved, seconded by Commissioner Casias, to recommend 
approval to City Council of the Final Plat of Brazos Town Center Section Three, a 17.5794 acre tract of 
land being a partial replat of Reserve “H”, Block 4, The Villages at Rosenberg (Slide No. 1945 A&B; 
F.B.C.P.R.) conveyed to Figure Four Partners, Ltd. (F.B.C.C.F. No. 2013159055) in the Jane H. Long League, 
Abstract No. 55, and in the Simon Jones Survey, Abstract No. 271, City Of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, 
Texas; 2 reserves, 62 lots, 3 blocks.  The motion carried unanimously.  
 

11. REVIEW AND DISCUSS ORNAMENTAL STREET LIGHT POLICY, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT 
STAFF. 
 
Executive Summary:  Staff has received an inquiry from the developer of Summer Lakes/Waterford Park 
(Fort Bend County MUD No. 144) regarding ornamental street lights.  They would like to install ornamental 
street lights, as opposed to the standard “cobra” lights, in the Summer Park portion of the development 
(the portion of MUD No. 144 south of Reading Road off of August Green Drive).  They would also like the 
City to accept and maintain the street lights as with standard lights. 
 
Currently, per City regulations (Code of Ordinances, Sec. 25-71; and Design Standards, Sec. 2.9), the 
location of street lighting systems are designed by CenterPoint Energy and approved by the City.  The 
developer pays for the cost of installation of the lights plus three (3) year’s maintenance.  The developer 
can install, and the City will accept, standard lights.  If the City were to accept non-standard or 
ornamental lights, it would require more lights to meet the same lighting standards because the 
ornamental lights are typically smaller.  Therefore it would result in greater long-term costs to the City. 
 
For example, in the subdivision for which this item is being discussed (Summer Park Section One), a 
standard street lighting system would require approximately thirty (30) lights.  To utilize ornamental lights 
and still meet the same lighting standards would require approximately thirty-five (35) lights.  If the lights 
cost approximately $15 per light per month to maintain (a rough estimate), the ornamental lighting 
system would cost the City an additional $900 annually if the City accepted the system.  Under the 
current City Ordinance, however, there is the option to (1) use standard lighting or (2) have a private 



 

 
Page 7 of 10 * DRAFT REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * FEBRUARY 26, 2014 

 

system that the Homeowners Association (HOA), not the City, would be responsible for maintaining. 
 
The developer requested that this item be placed on City Council and Planning Commission Agendas to 
discuss further options whereby the HOA would not have to take on the lighting system in order to have 
upgraded street lights.  There are not numerous examples of other cities’ policies addressing this 
particular issue.  Possibly the best example from the research staff conducted was the City of Missouri 
City, which will enter into an agreement whereby the HOA is responsible for additional ongoing costs 
above and beyond the standard number of street lights.  The only risk in this case may be reliance on an 
HOA for the long term maintenance costs.  This Agenda item was discussed at the January 28, 2014 City 
Council Workshop meeting, at which City Council directed staff to move forward with an amendment 
provided it wouldn’t result in any additional costs to the City. 
 
Staff is now requesting direction from the Planning Commission as to whether the City should (1) keep the 
current Ordinance as it is, or (2) proceed with an Ordinance Amendment similar to Missouri City’s 
(attached) that would allow the developer to install ornamental lights provided the HOA is responsible 
for the costs associated with the additional lights.  The latter could be done through an Amendment to 
the “Subdivision” Ordinance, and potentially the Design Standards. Should the Planning Commission 
direct staff to move forward, an amendment could be prepared and placed on a future City Council 
Agenda. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
• Chairperson Pavlovsky inquired if that HOA disbands in twenty-five years, who would be 

responsible for maintenance?  Would there be a way to shut down five lights and keep the rest 
up and running? 

• Commissioner Urbish replied that he doubts that would be possible. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that he is not sure who would be responsible in that case.  That is a risk and 

that is why we would not want to be accepting reimbursement for those maintenance costs but 
rather have the HOA set up an account to cover those maintenance costs with CenterPoint on 
their own. 

• Commissioner Urbish inquired if these ornamental pole lights 150W sodium lights or LEDs? 
• Mr. Tanner replied they are the same power as the cobra lights being installed now but the only 

difference is that they are smaller and provide less light. 
• Commissioner Urbish inquired if the $15 maintenance covers the electricity and maintenance?  

We are on the edge of a revolution with these LEDs.  High pressure sodium lights are on the way 
out.  He feels that within five years high pressure sodium lights will be obsolete.  If the developer 
would go in for the LED lighting now, he would be willing to take up the additional maintenance 
cost.  A retrofit is very expensive.  The electricity cost itself may be enough for CenterPoint to pick 
up the maintenance.  If an HOA goes under, CenterPoint will not just cut five lights loose.   

• Mr. Tanner replied that another concern would be if someone were to do a private system, which 
our ordinance currently allows, there is still a concern that if an HOA takes on those costs but then 
something happens to the HOA, would the City then be responsible for the whole system.  Staff 
would need to review the current regulations carefully.  In the Council meeting, there was not a 
clear understanding that the City takes on the maintenance for the standard lights already.   

• Commissioner Parsons stated that Commissioner Urbish is in this business so his comments should 
go back to City Council as well as our reservations about HOAs.   

• Commissioner Phipps inquired that if the developer goes through the added expense of putting 
in LED lights, we would just take them over as we normally do. 

• Commissioner Urbish replied that CenterPoint would have to agree to maintain these and right 
now the 150W sodium with base is the standard.  That will change and if anyone wants to see the 
LED lighting, I have it installed on the corners of my house.  The typical LED replacement for 150W 
sodium would be a 44W LED vs. 200W sodium when the ballast load is calculated.  With LEDs, the 
electricity would be substantially less than with the sodium lights, and the maintenance is 
minimal. 

• Chairperson Pavlovsky inquired what the additional initial cost would be to the developer. 
• Commissioner Urbish replied that the cost for LEDs is coming down everyday.  The 44W, that 

would replace the 150W sodium, is around $200 for the type of light.  CenterPoint would be 



 

 
Page 8 of 10 * DRAFT REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * FEBRUARY 26, 2014 

 

receiving better pricing for LEDs. 
• Mr. Tanner stated that he would be interested to see what CenterPoint does since they have a 

“menu” of lighting options for developers. 
• Commissioner Urbish stated that the current pricing is likely a bit high right now.  The 

incandescent we are replacing in residential homes were $44 a year ago and today they are 
$10-$12.    Until the next great thing, LEDs are taking the place of incandescent. 

• Chairperson Pavlovsky inquired what the Commission’s recommendation is for this item. 
• Commissioner Parsons replied that he thinks this Commission should take Commissioner Urbish’s 

comments regarding LEDs back as well as our concerns about the longevity of HOAs to provide 
maintenance for these lighting systems. 

• Commissioner Urbish stated that he does not think it would be split up that easily.   
• Chairperson Pavlovsky stated that he believes that it would be a better requirement to go ahead 

and move to the new LED system.  It would be to our advantage. 
• Commissioner Parsons replied that Council has not considered that. 
• Commissioner Poldrack inquired if Ms. Lenzsch is aware of any HOAs that have gone under. 
• Ms. Lenzsch replied that it depends on the community where the HOAs are set up.  She lives in 

the County where everyone is in an HOA.  The HOAs are active and have a lot of fees to 
maintain the common areas.  There is a dormant HOA here in Rosenberg and it does happen.  It 
is not the norm that an HOA would lose its authority but it does happen. 

• Commissioner Parsons stated that there would have been HOAs in older sections of Rosenberg 
but those have been dormant. 

• Commissioner Poldrack stated that his HOA has a lien structure to ensure residents pay their HOA 
dues. 

• Mr. Tanner stated that the Commissioners have brought up a valid concern and we need to find 
out what would happen if an HOA has an account but then defaults to CenterPoint.  Our current 
design standards also allow for a decorative/private lighting system and we will need to research 
to find out what happens in those cases.  

 
No action taken. 
 

12. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A REVISED PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING SCHEDULE AND 
SUBMITTAL DEADLINES CALENDAR TO BE IMPLEMENTED BY JULY 2014. 
 
Executive Summary:  On January 21, 2014, the Planning Commission (Commission) brought forward a 
Resolution to City Council regarding the continuation of Wednesday meetings.  At that time, City Council 
opted to maintain the recent policy change on meetings and directed the Commission to create a new 
meeting calendar establishing new meeting dates and plat submittal deadlines.  The current calendar, as 
approved in October 2013, will be utilized through June 2014. 
 
Staff has prepared the attached revised meeting calendar and submittal deadlines, proposed to begin 
in July 2014.  In order to accommodate staff availability, the proposed calendar would move the regular 
Commission meetings to the fourth Monday of each month.  Staff recommends the Commission review 
and discuss the proposed revised calendar for adoption or propose an alternate meeting date. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Chairperson Pavlovsky read the following prepared statement into the record: 
o “At the December meeting of the Rosenberg Planning Commission, a Resolution was 

approved by a five to one vote to ask our City Council to reconsider their vote and allow 
the Planning Commission and other Committees, Boards, and Commissions to meet at the 
time and date that they agreed to and working within the needs and requirements of 
City staff.  On January 21, 2014, as Chairman of the Planning Commission, I presented that 
Resolution to Council, a copy being in their Council packets.  After a short comment 
about the Resolution, I entertained questions about that document.  One question was 
about the vote and my reply was that it was five to one in favor of presenting it to 
Council.  I was rapidly advised that the vote now was three to three because two 
members of the Commission had retracted their affirmative vote.  Retracting that vote 



 

 
Page 9 of 10 * DRAFT REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * FEBRUARY 26, 2014 

 

would be impossible and I knew that our Committee was not in session and it could not 
have been retracted.  I was stunned by the misinformation.  I also felt that this 
misinformation was disseminated knowingly and intentionally to mislead the Mayor, 
Council, members of staff, Planning Commission and everyone at that meeting.  On 
January 22nd, the very next day, the following evening, the Rosenberg Planning 
Commission met at our regular monthly meeting and during our comments section, both 
Commissioners advised the Commission they did not retract their vote and would vote 
again the same way.  I will allow the recordings of the meetings and the minutes of the 
three mentioned meetings to speak for themselves.  I thank the Council for their time to 
investigate and discover the facts for themselves.  Council did NOT get accurate 
information from their fellow Council members.  I definitely want that to be part of the 
record to Council.” 

• Commissioner Parsons stated that at a subsequent City Council meeting, I spoke and outlayed 
what you just said to Council and suggested that this was not the first time we were misled by 
Council people in terms of issues that have to do with this Commission and our input.  The other 
being that the comment was made that we did not have to worry about the “One-Way Pairs” 
Project because it was a “done deal”. Along with Chairperson Pavlovsky, he thinks that Council 
has taken a couple of opportunities to mislead the input of this group and he does not like it.  It is 
disappointing that Council has taken that direction. 

• Chairperson Pavlovsky replied that he is extremely disappointed that our Council liaison is not 
present for tonight’s meeting. 

• Commissioner Parsons inquired when the term of this Commission is over. 
• Commissioner Poldrack replied May 2015. 
• Commissioner Parsons stated that he is burdened by having to meet on Mondays and would 

suggest that we meet on Thursday instead. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that was our initial choice but the City Engineer has a conflict with Thursdays 

and would not be available.  This was the reason we provided a draft schedule for Monday 
meetings.  Chairperson Pavlovsky has suggested meeting during the day on Wednesdays instead 
of in the evenings. 

• Chairperson Pavlovsky replied that he would not have any issues with meeting at 3:00 or 4:00 in 
the afternoon on Wednesdays.  Staff would be present and would not have overtime. 

• Commissioner Parsons replied that he thought we would not be able to meet on Wednesday no 
matter what time. 

• Chairperson Pavlovsky replied that there are Planning Commissions that meet during the day. 
• Commissioner Poldrack inquired if Commissioners Casias and Urbish would be available since 

they both work. 
• Commissioner Urbish replied that he can meet whenever we decide to meet.  He will make it 

happen. 
• Chairperson Pavlovsky stated that when one looks back at the people that have served this 

Commission, by far the majority of them are either retired or self-employed and would be 
available during the day. 

• Mr. Tanner replied that the City does have some Committees that meet during the day and the 
City of Houston’s Planning Commission meets during the day.  We do need to determine if 
Council’s intent was to prohibit all meetings from Wednesdays or just from Wednesday evenings. 

• Ms. Lenzsch replied that she did not think they meant to include Wednesday daytime.   
• Mr. Tanner stated that we have a few months to make this change. 
• Commissioner Parsons replied that he would join Chairperson Pavlovsky in meeting during the 

day on Wednesday.   
• Commissioner Casias stated that since this meeting is only once a month, she would be able to 

work it into her schedule to meet during the day. 
• Mr. Tanner stated that staff would prepare a meeting schedule to accommodate afternoon 

meetings and bring it back for consideration. 
• Commissioner Parsons inquired that if Wednesday is not permissible, how would Thursday evening 

work? 
• Mr. Tanner replied that Mr. Kalkomey has a conflict and would not be able to attend.  

 
The Commission reached a consensus to revise the regular meeting schedule to Wednesday afternoons 



 

 
Page 10 of 10 * DRAFT REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * FEBRUARY 26, 2014 

 

at 4:00 p.m.  Staff will prepare a revised calendar for consideration and investigate if Wednesday 
afternoons would be acceptable to Council. 
 

13. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON THE STAFF REPORT OF CURRENT ACTIVITIES AND REQUESTS FOR 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS. 
 
Executive Summary:  The Staff Report of Current Activities consists of projects that staff is currently working on 
as well as other updates that are relevant to the Planning Commission.  This item also allows the Planning 
Commission the opportunity to request that items be placed on future agendas. 
 
At the meeting, staff will provide updates on the Comprehensive Plan update process and “Sign” 
Ordinance amendments, which are the main items the Planning Department is focused on at this time.  
A Professional Services/Engineering Project Review Committee (Committee) meeting was held on 
February 11, 2014, to discuss consultants’ qualifications for the Comprehensive Plan update.  The 
Committee unanimously recommended to City Council that Kendig Keast Collaborative be selected to 
complete the project.  A contract must be approved by City Council to move forward.  This is a 
budgeted project. 
 
Staff continues to work on completing the “Sign” Ordinance amendments that have been prioritized by 
City Council.  On February 18, 2014, an Ordinance was presented to City Council regarding maximum 
freestanding sign heights and sizes for Avenues H and I and State Highway 36.  The Ordinance was 
tabled by City Council and will be reviewed at a future meeting. 
 
Key Discussion: 

• Mr. Tanner reviewed the item and stated that there was a Professional Services/Engineering 
Project Review Committee meeting on February 11th to review consultants for the 
Comprehensive Plan update and the Committee unanimously selected Kendig Keast 
Collaborative.  This firm has done work for the City in the past, particularly the Parks Master Plan.  
That was the recommendation and staff will still need to iron out a contract to go to Council for 
consideration.  We are working on that now.  On the “Sign” Ordinance amendments, we brought 
those to Council on February 18th and they tabled the item to discuss as a future meeting. 

 
No action taken.  
 

14. Announcements. 
• Chairperson Pavlovsky announced that the Knights of Columbus Fish Fry will begin next Friday.  

Tickets are available at the door and it is $9.00 every Friday during Lent. 
 

15.  Adjournment. 
There being no further discussion, Chairperson Pavlovsky adjourned the Rosenberg Planning Commission 
Meeting at 6:59 p.m. 
 

 
______________________________ 

Renée LeLaurin 
Secretary II 

 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION 
 
March 26, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

2 Final Plat of Bonbrook Plantation North Section Ten 
 
MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on a Final Plat of Bonbrook Plantation North Section Ten, a subdivision of 
12.205 acres of land situated in the Wiley Martin League, Abstract 56, Fort Bend County, Texas; 39 lots, 1 
reserve (0.917 acre), 3 blocks. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends the Planning Commission recommend approval to City Council of the Final Plat of 
Bonbrook Plantation North Section Ten. 
 

MUD # City/ETJ ELECTION DISTRICT 
155 (Bonbrook Plantation) ETJ N/A 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

1. Final Plat of Bonbrook Plantation North Section Ten 
2. Preliminary Plat of Bonbrook Plantation North Section Ten – 01-22-14 
3. Land Plan for Bonbrook Plantation – 09-25-07 
4. Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt – 01-22-14 

 
APPROVAL 

Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director of 
Community Development

Reviewed by:   

      Executive Director of Community Development 

  X   City Engineer  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Final Plat of Bonbrook Plantation North Section Ten is located off of Blossom Terrace Lane in the northeast 
part of Bonbrook Plantation.  It is located in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and in Fort Bend County 
Municipal Utility District No. 155 (MUD No. 155).  The Plat contains thirty-nine (39) residential lots and one (1) 
0.917-acre landscape reserve. 
 
The proposed lot size for the subdivision is predominantly sixty-five foot (65’) lots in accordance with the 
approved Land Plan, although many lots are larger and a few (5) are slightly smaller due to being cul-de-sac lots 
that are less than fifty feet (50’) wide as measured at the front property line.  All lots are a minimum of 65’ at the 
front building line.  Overall, the lot layout is consistent with the Land Plan.  It is also consistent with the 
Preliminary Plat, which was approved by the Planning Commission on January 22, 2014. 
 
With the Final Plat being consistent with the approved Preliminary Plat and Land Plan, and not in conflict with 
any applicable regulations, staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval to City 
Council of the Final Plat of Bonbrook Plantation North Section Ten. 
  
 
 



VICINITY MAP

N

BEAZER HOMES TEXAS, L.P.

BONBROOK  PLANTATION  NORTH
SECTION TEN 

BY: BEAZER HOMES TEXAS HOLDINGS, INC.

LJA Engineering, Inc.
2929 Briarpark Drive                                    Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 600                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                                             FRN - F-1386



BEAZER HOMES TEXAS, L.P.

BONBROOK  PLANTATION  NORTH

BY: BEAZER HOMES TEXAS HOLDINGS, INC.

VICINITY MAP

N

N

LJA Engineering, Inc.
2929 Briarpark Drive                                    Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 600                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                                             FRN - F-1386

SECTION TEN 







reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION 
 
March 26, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

3 Final Plat of Bonbrook Plantation South Section Five 
 
MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on a Final Plat of Bonbrook Plantation South Section Five, a subdivision of 
49.784 acres of land situated in the Wiley Martin League, Abstract 56, Fort Bend County, Texas; 115 lots, 
7 reserves (18.984 acres), 2 blocks. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends the Planning Commission recommend approval to City Council of the Final Plat of 
Bonbrook Plantation South Section Five. 
 

MUD # City/ETJ ELECTION DISTRICT 
155 (Bonbrook Plantation) ETJ N/A 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

1. Final Plat of Bonbrook Plantation South Section Five 
2. Preliminary Plat of Bonbrook Plantation South Section Five – 01-22-14 
3. Land Plan for Bonbrook Plantation – Please refer to previous Agenda item 
4. Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt – 01-22-14 

  
APPROVAL 

Submitted by: 

 
 
Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director of Community 
Development 

Reviewed by:   

      Executive Director of Community Services 

  X   City Engineer  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Final Plat of Bonbrook Plantation South Section Five is a proposed subdivision located off of Reading Road 
in the southeast part of Bonbrook Plantation.  It is in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and in Fort Bend 
County MUD No. 155.  The plat contains the portion of Reading Road that connects Bonbrook Plantation to 
Bridlewood Estates.  The latter is in accordance with the approved Land Plan for Bonbrook Plantation. 
 
The plat consists of 115 lots and seven (7) reserves including a detention reserve (“A”) containing over 14 acres.  
The plat consists of the following lots sizes: 

• 18 x 50’ lots 
• 62 x 55’ lots 
• 35 x 65’+ lots 

 
The proposed plat and lot layout reflects the approved Land Plan.  This is the final subdivision in Bonbrook 
Plantation South and one of the final subdivisions in Bonbrook Plantation overall. 
 
The Preliminary Plat of this subdivision was approved by the Planning Commission on January 22, 2014.  The 
Final Plat is consistent with the approved Preliminary Plat and not in conflict with any applicable regulations.  
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval to City Council of the Final Plat of 
Bonbrook Plantation South Section Five. 
  
 



LJA Engineering, Inc.
2929 Briarpark Drive                                    Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 600                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                                             FRN - F-1386

BONBROOK PLANTATION, L.P.

SECTION FIVE
BONBROOK PLANTATION SOUTH

A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
BY: TAYLOR & WEIDNER, L.L.C.
MANAGING GENERAL PARTNER

VICINITY MAP

N



N

LJA Engineering, Inc.
2929 Briarpark Drive                                    Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 600                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                                             FRN - F-1386

BONBROOK PLANTATION, L.P.

SECTION FIVE
BONBROOK PLANTATION SOUTH

A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
BY: TAYLOR & WEIDNER , L.L.C.
MANAGING GENERAL PARTNER

VICINITY MAP

N



N

LJA Engineering, Inc.
2929 Briarpark Drive                                    Phone  713.953.5200
Suite 600                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                                             FRN - F-1386

BONBROOK PLANTATION, L.P.

SECTION FIVE
BONBROOK PLANTATION SOUTH

A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
BY: TAYLOR & WEIDNER , L.L.C.
MANAGING GENERAL PARTNER

PRELIMINARY PLAT

VICINITY MAP

N



reneel
Rectangle



PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION 
 
March 26, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

4 Final Plat of Walnut Creek Section Ten 
 
MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on a Final Plat of Walnut Creek Section Ten, a subdivision of 9.689 acres 
containing 42 lots, 2 blocks, 2 restricted reserves, out of the Eugene Wheat Survey, A-396, Fort Bend 
County, Texas. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat of Walnut Creek Section Ten. 
 

MUD # City/ETJ ELECTION DISTRICT 
152 ETJ N/A 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

1. Final Plat of Walnut Creek Section Ten 
2. Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Ten – 03-27-13 
3. Land Plan for Walnut Creek 
4. Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt – 09-25-13 
5. Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt – 03-27-13 

 
APPROVAL 

Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director of Community 
Development 

Reviewed by:   

      Executive Director of Community Development 

  X   City Engineer  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Final Plat of Walnut Creek Section Ten is located off of Ricefield Road and Candle Oaks Lane, directly 
adjacent to Walnut Creek Sections Six and Eight.  It is located in the City’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and 
in Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 152 (MUD No. 152).  The plat consists of 9.689 acres, forty-two 
(42) single-family residential lots, and two (2) reserves consisting of 0.32 acres. 

The approved Land Plan for Walnut Creek identifies fifty-five-foot (55’) lot widths for this particular area of the 
development.  All of the proposed lots in the Plat are a minimum of 55’ as measured at the front building line.  
Twelve (12) of the lots in the proposed subdivision are sixty feet (60’) or greater in width, and five (5) lots are 
identified as fifty-foot (50’) lots due to their width at the right-of-way. 

According to the approved Land Plan, at build-out, Walnut Creek will contain a minimum of 50 percent sixty-foot 
lots per the ordinance in effect at the time the development began.  All subdivisions platted so far have been in 
accordance with the approved Land Plan. 

The proposed Final Plat of Walnut Creek Section Ten is in compliance with the approved Land Plan for MUD No. 
152, with applicable provisions of the “Subdivision” Ordinance, and with the Preliminary Plat, which was initially 
approved by the Planning Commission on March 27, 2013, and for which a six-month extension was granted on 
September 25, 2013.  Staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval to City Council of 
the Final Plat of Walnut Creek Section Ten. 
  









I R B Y          C O B B        B L V D
 .

ROSENBERG       ANNEXATIO
N

CI
TY      OF

#20    
   (

85
-14

)

 O
F            ROSENBERG ANNEXATION

CITY

#21     (85-20)

CITY LIMITS LINE-
CITY OF ROSENBERG

CITY LI
MITS LI

NE-

CITY O
F R

OSENBERG

(TYP.50' X 120')

(TYP.50' X 120')

(TYP.60' X 120')

(TYP.55' X 110')

  Temp. Esmt. for
Emergency Access
          Only

(TYP.55' X 110')

(TYP.60' X 120')

(TYP.50' X 120')

(TYP.60' X 120')

(TYP.60' X 110')

(TYP.60' X 110')

109 LOTS

112 LOTS

99 LOTS

108 LOTS

91 LOTS

320 LOTS

133 LOTS

138 LOTS

108 LOTS

92 LOTS

±4.5 ACRES

±13.0 ACRES

±16.4 ACRES

±1.10 ACRES

ELEMENTARY
SCHOOL

OPEN
SPACE

COM

NEIGHBORHOOD

PARK 1

FLOOD ZONE LINE
FLOOD ZONE LINE

FLOOD ZONE LINE

FLOOD ZONE LINE

PARK 2
POCKET

PARK 1
POCKET

DET (SW)
±5.7 ACRES

DET (SE)
±11.5 ACRES

SITE
±3.0 ACRES

WWPS
±5.0 ACRES

DRILL

SITE
±3.0 ACRES

DRILL

SITE
±3.0 ACRES

DRILL

DET (NW)

(PH.I DET)
±25.1 ACRES

PARK 2
NEIGHBORHOOD

±3.2 ACRES

DET (NE)
±3.0 ACRES

F.
M

. 2
97

7 
- M

IN
O

N
IT

E 
R

O
A

D

RICEFIELD ROAD

B
EN

TO
N

R
O

A
D

(1
00

’ R
.O

.W
.)

200 ‘  FORT BEND  CO. DRAINAGE DISTRICT EASEMENT

±6.75 ACRES

PEDESTRIAN
TRAIL

20' TEXAS EASTERN TRANSMISSION CORPORATION EASEMENT

1
5
0
’ E

a
s
e
m

e
n
t

60' PRIVATE ROAD AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT

R
IC

H
M

O
N

D
 IR

R
IG

AT
IO

N

C
O

M
PA

N
Y 

EA
SE

M
EN

T

A. MYERS ROAD
(60'  R.O.W.)

B
EN

TO
N

 R
O

A
D

(8
0'

 R
.O

.W
.)

20
’ W

id
en

in
g

(R
.O

.W
. V

AR
IE

S)

(60' R.O.W.)

C
IT

Y 
LI

M
IT

S 
LI

N
E-

C
IT

Y

 O
F 

R
O

SE
N

BE
R

G

CITY OF ROSENBERG ETJ LINE PER ROSENBERG MAP

CIT
Y O

F T
HOMPSON'S E

TJ
 

CIT
Y O

F R
OSENBERG E

TJ
 

LINEAR
 PARK

LINEAR
 PARK

PARK 3
POCKET

PARK 4
POCKET

(TYP.50' X 120')

(TYP.55' X 110')

96 LOTS

103 LOTS

10
0'

 R
IC

H
M

O
N

D
 IR

R
IG

AT
IO

N
 C

O
M

PA
N

Y 
ES

M
T.

VO
L.

 1
25

, P
G

. 1
69

, D
.R

.F
.B

.C
.

V i c i n i t y   M a p 

N

59
762

N T S

K E R R Y  R .  G I L B E R
T

 &
 A

S
S

O
C

I
A

T
E

S
,

 
I

N
C

.

K
E

R
R

Y
 

R
.

 
G

I
L

B
E

R
T

 &
 A

S
S O C I A T E S ,  I N C .

©2007-2008 Kerry R. Gilber t &
 A

ssoc
ia

te
s, In

c
., A

ll R
i g

h
ts

 

LOT ANALYSIS

SUB TOTALENTIRE PROJECT

1,509  TOTAL  LOTS

752 LOTS    (50%)

757 LOTS    (50%)

450 LOTS

302 LOTS

757 LOTS

(TYP.50'X120')

ROW WIDTH

Pocket Park 1
Pocket Park 2
Pocket Park 3
Pocket Park 4
Open Space

Neighborhood Park 2
Neighborhood Park 1

Linear Park
Detention (NE)
Detention (SW)
Detention (SE)
Detention (NW)

0.27
0.48
0.22
0.36
1.1

3.2
4.5

5.70
3.0
10.05
7.95
25.1

10%
10%
10%
10%
50%

50%
50%

10%
25%
25%
25%
25%

0.03
0.05
0.02
0.04
0.5

1.6
2.25

0.57
0.75
2.51
1.99
6.27

Completed

Park Area (Ac.) Credit (%)

ROSEHAVEN PARKLAND ANALYSIS (Revised 2008)

Park Area Status
Park Area

Completed
To Be Completed
To Be Completed
To Be Completed
To Be Completed
To Be Completed
14% Completed
To Be Completed
To Be Completed
To Be Completed
25% Completed

Total Private Park Provided = 16.58 Ac.
Total Parkland Required=  1509 Lots/160 Lots/Ac. =           9.43 Ac. 
Total Private Parkland Required=  9.43 Ac. *  50% =           4.71 Ac.
Amount of Parkland Remaining (Money in Lieu of Land) =  4.71 Ac.
Payment Required  =  4.71 Ac.  *  160 Lots/Ac.  *  $350  = $263,760   

Notes:
1. Maintenance Responsibility for Pocket Parks, Neighborhood Park, 
    and Open Space will be the Homeowner’s Asociation.
2. Maintenance Responsibility for Detention Areas NW,NE,SW, & SE will be
    proposed FBMUD No.152.
3. Neighborhood Park 1 shall contain the following improvements: *Swimming Pool

*Cabana
*Playground
*Parking

60’ (PATIO HOME ACCESS RD.)
60’ (OTHER)
70’

*

PAVING WIDTH
36’
27’
39’

City is granted access into 5’ of the landscape
reserve along each side of Irby Cobb Dr. for maintenance purposes.

(TYP.55'X110')

(TYP.60'X110'/120')

a general plan for

K E R R Y  R .  G I L B E R T  &  A S S O C I A T E S ,  I N C . Land Planning Consultants

WA L N U T  C R E E K
B E I N G ± 5 2 7 . 3  AC R E S  o f  L A N D

JANUARY 09, 2008
KGA #05504

SCALE

0 600300150

23501 Cinco Ranch Blvd.
Suite A-250

Katy, Texas 77494
(281) 579-0340

Fax (281) 579-8212

D I S C L A I M E R  A N D  L I M I T E D  W A R R A N T Y

A L L  O T H E R  W A R R A N T I E S ,   E X P R E S S  O R  I M P L I E D ,  A N D   N E I T H E R   K E R R Y  R .  G I L B E R T  &

S U B D I V I S I O N  P L AT.

P R O V I S I O N S  O F  T H E  C I T Y  O F  R O S E N B E R G  S U B D I V I S I O N  O R D I N A N C E  I N  E F F E C T  AT  T H E
T I M E  T H I S  P L AT  W A S   P R E PA R E D  A L O N G  W I T H   A N Y  VA R I A N C E  O R  VA R I A N C E S  T O  T H E

P R E PA R E D  F O R  T H E  L I M I T E D  P U R P O S E  O F  G U I D A N C E  I N  T H E  P R E PA R AT I O N  O F  A C T U A L

T H I S  P R E L I M I N A R Y  S U B D I V I S I O N  P L AT  H A S  B E E N   P R E PA R E D  I N  A C C O R D A N C E  W I T H  T H E

P R O V I S I O N S  O F  T H E  A F O R E M E N T I O N E D  O R D I N A N C E  W H I C H  A R E  S U B S E Q U E N T LY  G R A N T E D
B Y  T H E   C I T Y  O F  R O S E N B E R G  P L A N N I N G   C O M M I S S I O N .   T H I S   P R E L I M I N A R Y   P L AT  W A S  

A S S O C I AT E S ,  I N C . ,   N O R  A N Y  O F  I T S   O F F I C E R S ,  O R  D I R E C T O R S ,  O R  E M P L O Y E E S  M A K E
E N G I N E E R I N G  A N D  D E V E L O P M E N T  P L A N S .  T H I S  L I M I T E D  W A R R A N T Y  I S  M A D E  I N  L I E U  O F

A N Y  O T H E R   W A R R A N T I E S  O R   R E P R E S E N TAT I O N S ,   E X P R E S S  O R  I M P L I E D  C O N C E R N I N G
F A C I L I T I E S   I N ,  O N ,  O V E R ,  O R   U N D E R  T H E   P R E M I S E S  I N D I C AT E D  I N  T H E  P R E L I M I N A R Y  
T H E  D E S I G N ,   L O C AT I O N ,   Q U A L I T Y,   C H A R A C T E R  O F   A C T U A L   U T I L I T I E S   O R   O T H E R

ATTN: MR. RANDY ODINET, P.E. (713) 462-3178
PLANNER:

HOUSTON, TEXAS 77040
13333 NORTHWEST FREEWAY, #300

HOUSTON, TEXAS 77067

LENNAR HOMES OF TEXAS LAND CONSTRUCTION

PATE ENGINEERS

ATTN: MR. JAVIER MARTINEZ (281) 874-4467

EUGENE WHEAT SURVEY, A-396

ENGINEER/SURVEYOR:

FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS
OWNER:

OUT of THE

550 GREENS PARKWAY, #100



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION 
 
March 26, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

5 Revised 2014 Meeting Schedule and Submittal Deadlines Calendar 
 
MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on a revised Planning Commission Meeting Schedule and Submittal 
Deadlines Calendar to be implemented by July 2014.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff has no recommendation for this item. 
 

MUD # City/ETJ ELECTION DISTRICT 
N/A N/A N/A 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

1. Planning Commission Meetings and Submittal Deadlines 2014 – Revised Start Time 
2. Planning Commission Meetings and Submittal Deadlines 2014 – Revised Date and Start Time 
3. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 01-21-14  
4. Planning Commission Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt – 02-26-14 
5. Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt – 12-18-13 
6. Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt – 11-20-13 
 

APPROVAL 

Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP  
Executive Director of Community 
Development 

Reviewed by:   

      Executive Director of Community Development 

      City Engineer 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
On January 21, 2014, the Planning Commission (Commission) brought forward a Resolution to City Council 
regarding the continuation of Wednesday meetings.  At that time, City Council opted to maintain the recent policy 
change on meetings and directed the Commission to create a new meeting calendar establishing new meeting 
dates and plat submittal deadlines.  The current calendar, as approved in October 2013, could be utilized 
through June 2014. 
 
Following discussion from the November 20th, December 18th and February 26th Planning Commission meetings, 
staff has prepared the attached revised meeting calendar and submittal deadlines, proposed to begin as early as 
April 2014 but no later than July 2014.  In order to accommodate staff availability, the first proposed calendar 
would keep the regular Commission meetings on the fourth Wednesday of each month, but would advance the 
meeting start time from 6:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m.  A second option would be to meet on the third Wednesday of 
each month at 4:00 p.m.  After further discussions following the February Planning Commission meeting, in 
addition to City staff, the third Wednesday would accommodate the schedules of both the City Engineer and City 
Attorney.  Staff recommends the Commission review and discuss the proposed revised calendar options for 
adoption or propose an alternate meeting date/time. 
  
 
 



City of Rosenberg
Planning Commission Meetings 

and Submittal Deadlines 2014

Planning Commission Deadlines City Council Deadlines
Initial

Submittal
Revised Submittal

from Applicant
Planning Commission
Meeting - 4:00 p.m. City Council Submittal

City Council
Meeting

Friday, December 27, 2013 Wednesday, January 22, 2014 Thursday, December 19, 2013 Tuesday, January 07, 2014
Friday, January 31, 2014 Wednesday, February 26, 2014 Thursday, January 02, 2014 Tuesday, January 21, 2014

Friday, February 28, 2014 Wednesday, March 26, 2014 Thursday, January 16, 2014 Tuesday, February 04, 2014
Friday, March 28, 2014 Wednesday, April 23, 2014 Thursday, January 30, 2014 Tuesday, February 18, 2014
Friday, May 02, 2014 Wednesday, May 28, 2014 Thursday, February 13, 2014 Tuesday, March 04, 2014
Friday, May 30, 2014 Wednesday, June 25, 2014 Thursday, February 27, 2014 Tuesday, March 18, 2014
Friday, June 27, 2014 Wednesday, July 23, 2014 Thursday, March 13, 2014 Tuesday, April 01, 2014

Friday, August 01, 2014 Wednesday, August 27, 2014 Thursday, March 27, 2014 Tuesday, April 15, 2014
Friday, August 29, 2014 Wednesday, September 24, 2014 Thursday, April 17, 2014 Tuesday, May 06, 2014

Monday, September 29, 2014 Wednesday, October 22, 2014 Thursday, May 01, 2014 Tuesday, May 20, 2014
Friday, October 24, 2014 Wednesday, November 19, 2014 Thursday, May 15, 2014 Tuesday, June 03, 2014

Monday, November 24, 2014 Wednesday, December 17, 2014 Thursday, May 29, 2014 Tuesday, June 17, 2014
Thursday, June 12, 2014 Tuesday, July 01, 2014
Thursday, June 26, 2014 Tuesday, July 15, 2014
Thursday, July 17, 2014 Tuesday, August 05, 2014
Thursday, July 31, 2014 Tuesday, August 19, 2014

Thursday, August 14, 2014 Tuesday, September 02, 2014
Thursday, August 28, 2014 Tuesday, September 16, 2014

Thursday, September 18, 2014 Tuesday, October 07, 2014
Thursday, October 02, 2014 Tuesday, October 21, 2014
Thursday, October 16, 2014 Tuesday, November 04, 2014
Thursday, October 30, 2014 Tuesday, November 18, 2014

Thursday, November 13, 2014 Tuesday, December 02, 2014
Wednesday, November 26, 2014 Tuesday, December 16, 2014

Notes
1. A submittal is required each month on the "Initial Submittal" deadline, regardless of whether or not 
staff has previously reviewed the plat.
2. If required documents are not submitted on time, plats will not be placed on the agenda for that 
particular month.
3. Planning Commission Deadlines are at 12:00 p.m., City Council Deadlines are at 4:30 p.m, unless 
otherwise noted. Dates in italics  signify deadlines that do not fall on the regularly scheduled Friday for 
Planning Commission or the regularly scheduled Thursday for City Council.
4. Schedule is subject to change. Please contact the Planning Department at 832-595-3500 to verify 
deadline dates and times.

The Revised Submittal deadline 
will be communicated to 
applicants with the Initial 

Submittal Report.

DRAFT



City of Rosenberg
Planning Commission Meetings 

and Submittal Deadlines 2014

Planning Commission Deadlines City Council Deadlines
Initial

Submittal
Revised Submittal

from Applicant
Planning Commission
Meeting - 4:00 p.m. City Council Submittal

City Council
Meeting

Friday, December 27, 2013 Wednesday, January 22, 2014 Thursday, December 19, 2013 Tuesday, January 07, 2014
Friday, January 31, 2014 Wednesday, February 26, 2014 Thursday, January 02, 2014 Tuesday, January 21, 2014

Friday, February 28, 2014 Wednesday, March 26, 2014 Thursday, January 16, 2014 Tuesday, February 04, 2014
Friday, March 21, 2014 Wednesday, April 16, 2014 Thursday, January 30, 2014 Tuesday, February 18, 2014
Friday, April 25, 2014 Wednesday, May 21, 2014 Thursday, February 13, 2014 Tuesday, March 04, 2014
Friday, May 23, 2014 Wednesday, June 18, 2014 Thursday, February 27, 2014 Tuesday, March 18, 2014
Friday, June 20, 2014 Wednesday, July 16, 2014 Thursday, March 13, 2014 Tuesday, April 01, 2014
Friday, July 25, 2014 Wednesday, August 20, 2014 Thursday, March 27, 2014 Tuesday, April 15, 2014

Friday, August 22, 2014 Wednesday, September 17, 2014 Thursday, April 17, 2014 Tuesday, May 06, 2014
Friday, September 19, 2014 Wednesday, October 15, 2014 Thursday, May 01, 2014 Tuesday, May 20, 2014
Friday, October 24, 2014 Wednesday, November 19, 2014 Thursday, May 15, 2014 Tuesday, June 03, 2014

Friday, November 21, 2014 Wednesday, December 17, 2014 Thursday, May 29, 2014 Tuesday, June 17, 2014
Thursday, June 12, 2014 Tuesday, July 01, 2014
Thursday, June 26, 2014 Tuesday, July 15, 2014
Thursday, July 17, 2014 Tuesday, August 05, 2014
Thursday, July 31, 2014 Tuesday, August 19, 2014

Thursday, August 14, 2014 Tuesday, September 02, 2014
Thursday, August 28, 2014 Tuesday, September 16, 2014

Thursday, September 18, 2014 Tuesday, October 07, 2014
Thursday, October 02, 2014 Tuesday, October 21, 2014
Thursday, October 16, 2014 Tuesday, November 04, 2014
Thursday, October 30, 2014 Tuesday, November 18, 2014

Thursday, November 13, 2014 Tuesday, December 02, 2014
Wednesday, November 26, 2014 Tuesday, December 16, 2014

Notes
1. A submittal is required each month on the "Initial Submittal" deadline, regardless of whether or not 
staff has previously reviewed the plat.
2. If required documents are not submitted on time, plats will not be placed on the agenda for that 
particular month.
3. Planning Commission Deadlines are at 12:00 p.m., City Council Deadlines are at 4:30 p.m, unless 
otherwise noted. Dates in italics  signify deadlines that do not fall on the regularly scheduled Friday for 
Planning Commission or the regularly scheduled Thursday for City Council.
4. Schedule is subject to change. Please contact the Planning Department at 832-595-3500 to verify 
deadline dates and times.

The Revised Submittal deadline 
will be communicated to 
applicants with the Initial 

Submittal Report.

DRAFT



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



�

�
Page 8 of 10 * DRAFT REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * FEBRUARY 26, 2014�

�

receiving better pricing for LEDs.
� Mr. Tanner stated that he would be interested to see what CenterPoint does since they have a 

“menu” of lighting options for developers.
� Commissioner Urbish stated that the current pricing is likely a bit high right now.  The 

incandescent we are replacing in residential homes were $44 a year ago and today they are 
$10-$12.    Until the next great thing, LEDs are taking the place of incandescent.

� Chairperson Pavlovsky inquired what the Commission’s recommendation is for this item.
� Commissioner Parsons replied that he thinks this Commission should take Commissioner Urbish’s 

comments regarding LEDs back as well as our concerns about the longevity of HOAs to provide 
maintenance for these lighting systems.

� Commissioner Urbish stated that he does not think it would be split up that easily.  
� Chairperson Pavlovsky stated that he believes that it would be a better requirement to go ahead 

and move to the new LED system.  It would be to our advantage.
� Commissioner Parsons replied that Council has not considered that.
� Commissioner Poldrack inquired if Ms. Lenzsch is aware of any HOAs that have gone under.
� Ms. Lenzsch replied that it depends on the community where the HOAs are set up.  She lives in 

the County where everyone is in an HOA.  The HOAs are active and have a lot of fees to 
maintain the common areas.  There is a dormant HOA here in Rosenberg and it does happen.  It 
is not the norm that an HOA would lose its authority but it does happen.

� Commissioner Parsons stated that there would have been HOAs in older sections of Rosenberg 
but those have been dormant.

� Commissioner Poldrack stated that his HOA has a lien structure to ensure residents pay their HOA 
dues.

� Mr. Tanner stated that the Commissioners have brought up a valid concern and we need to find 
out what would happen if an HOA has an account but then defaults to CenterPoint.  Our current 
design standards also allow for a decorative/private lighting system and we will need to research 
to find out what happens in those cases. 

No action taken. 

12. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A REVISED PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING SCHEDULE AND 
SUBMITTAL DEADLINES CALENDAR TO BE IMPLEMENTED BY JULY 2014. 

Executive Summary:  On January 21, 2014, the Planning Commission (Commission) brought forward a 
Resolution to City Council regarding the continuation of Wednesday meetings.  At that time, City Council 
opted to maintain the recent policy change on meetings and directed the Commission to create a new 
meeting calendar establishing new meeting dates and plat submittal deadlines.  The current calendar, as 
approved in October 2013, will be utilized through June 2014. 

Staff has prepared the attached revised meeting calendar and submittal deadlines, proposed to begin 
in July 2014.  In order to accommodate staff availability, the proposed calendar would move the regular 
Commission meetings to the fourth Monday of each month.  Staff recommends the Commission review 
and discuss the proposed revised calendar for adoption or propose an alternate meeting date.

Key Discussion: 
� Chairperson Pavlovsky read the following prepared statement into the record: 

o “At the December meeting of the Rosenberg Planning Commission, a Resolution was 
approved by a five to one vote to ask our City Council to reconsider their vote and allow 
the Planning Commission and other Committees, Boards, and Commissions to meet at the 
time and date that they agreed to and working within the needs and requirements of 
City staff.  On January 21, 2014, as Chairman of the Planning Commission, I presented that 
Resolution to Council, a copy being in their Council packets.  After a short comment 
about the Resolution, I entertained questions about that document.  One question was 
about the vote and my reply was that it was five to one in favor of presenting it to 
Council.  I was rapidly advised that the vote now was three to three because two 
members of the Commission had retracted their affirmative vote.  Retracting that vote 

reneel
Rectangle



�

�
Page 9 of 10 * DRAFT REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * FEBRUARY 26, 2014�

�

would be impossible and I knew that our Committee was not in session and it could not 
have been retracted.  I was stunned by the misinformation.  I also felt that this 
misinformation was disseminated knowingly and intentionally to mislead the Mayor, 
Council, members of staff, Planning Commission and everyone at that meeting.  On 
January 22nd, the very next day, the following evening, the Rosenberg Planning 
Commission met at our regular monthly meeting and during our comments section, both 
Commissioners advised the Commission they did not retract their vote and would vote 
again the same way.  I will allow the recordings of the meetings and the minutes of the 
three mentioned meetings to speak for themselves.  I thank the Council for their time to 
investigate and discover the facts for themselves.  Council did NOT get accurate 
information from their fellow Council members.  I definitely want that to be part of the 
record to Council.” 

� Commissioner Parsons stated that at a subsequent City Council meeting, I spoke and outlayed 
what you just said to Council and suggested that this was not the first time we were misled by 
Council people in terms of issues that have to do with this Commission and our input.  The other 
being that the comment was made that we did not have to worry about the “One-Way Pairs” 
Project because it was a “done deal”. Along with Chairperson Pavlovsky, he thinks that Council 
has taken a couple of opportunities to mislead the input of this group and he does not like it.  It is 
disappointing that Council has taken that direction. 

� Chairperson Pavlovsky replied that he is extremely disappointed that our Council liaison is not 
present for tonight’s meeting. 

� Commissioner Parsons inquired when the term of this Commission is over. 
� Commissioner Poldrack replied May 2015. 
� Commissioner Parsons stated that he is burdened by having to meet on Mondays and would 

suggest that we meet on Thursday instead. 
� Mr. Tanner replied that was our initial choice but the City Engineer has a conflict with Thursdays 

and would not be available.  This was the reason we provided a draft schedule for Monday 
meetings.  Chairperson Pavlovsky has suggested meeting during the day on Wednesdays instead 
of in the evenings. 

� Chairperson Pavlovsky replied that he would not have any issues with meeting at 3:00 or 4:00 in 
the afternoon on Wednesdays.  Staff would be present and would not have overtime. 

� Commissioner Parsons replied that he thought we would not be able to meet on Wednesday no 
matter what time. 

� Chairperson Pavlovsky replied that there are Planning Commissions that meet during the day. 
� Commissioner Poldrack inquired if Commissioners Casias and Urbish would be available since 

they both work. 
� Commissioner Urbish replied that he can meet whenever we decide to meet.  He will make it 

happen. 
� Chairperson Pavlovsky stated that when one looks back at the people that have served this 

Commission, by far the majority of them are either retired or self-employed and would be 
available during the day. 

� Mr. Tanner replied that the City does have some Committees that meet during the day and the 
City of Houston’s Planning Commission meets during the day.  We do need to determine if 
Council’s intent was to prohibit all meetings from Wednesdays or just from Wednesday evenings. 

� Ms. Lenzsch replied that she did not think they meant to include Wednesday daytime.   
� Mr. Tanner stated that we have a few months to make this change. 
� Commissioner Parsons replied that he would join Chairperson Pavlovsky in meeting during the 

day on Wednesday.   
� Commissioner Casias stated that since this meeting is only once a month, she would be able to 

work it into her schedule to meet during the day. 
� Mr. Tanner stated that staff would prepare a meeting schedule to accommodate afternoon 

meetings and bring it back for consideration. 
� Commissioner Parsons inquired that if Wednesday is not permissible, how would Thursday evening 

work? 
� Mr. Tanner replied that Mr. Kalkomey has a conflict and would not be able to attend.  

The Commission reached a consensus to revise the regular meeting schedule to Wednesday afternoons 

reneel
Rectangle



�

�
Page 10 of 10 * DRAFT REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * FEBRUARY 26, 2014�

�

at 4:00 p.m.  Staff will prepare a revised calendar for consideration and investigate if Wednesday 
afternoons would be acceptable to Council. 

13. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON THE STAFF REPORT OF CURRENT ACTIVITIES AND REQUESTS FOR 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS. 

Executive Summary:  The Staff Report of Current Activities consists of projects that staff is currently working on 
as well as other updates that are relevant to the Planning Commission.  This item also allows the Planning 
Commission the opportunity to request that items be placed on future agendas. 

At the meeting, staff will provide updates on the Comprehensive Plan update process and “Sign” 
Ordinance amendments, which are the main items the Planning Department is focused on at this time.  
A Professional Services/Engineering Project Review Committee (Committee) meeting was held on 
February 11, 2014, to discuss consultants’ qualifications for the Comprehensive Plan update.  The 
Committee unanimously recommended to City Council that Kendig Keast Collaborative be selected to 
complete the project.  A contract must be approved by City Council to move forward.  This is a 
budgeted project. 

Staff continues to work on completing the “Sign” Ordinance amendments that have been prioritized by 
City Council.  On February 18, 2014, an Ordinance was presented to City Council regarding maximum 
freestanding sign heights and sizes for Avenues H and I and State Highway 36.  The Ordinance was 
tabled by City Council and will be reviewed at a future meeting.

Key Discussion: 
� Mr. Tanner reviewed the item and stated that there was a Professional Services/Engineering 

Project Review Committee meeting on February 11th to review consultants for the 
Comprehensive Plan update and the Committee unanimously selected Kendig Keast 
Collaborative.  This firm has done work for the City in the past, particularly the Parks Master Plan.  
That was the recommendation and staff will still need to iron out a contract to go to Council for 
consideration.  We are working on that now.  On the “Sign” Ordinance amendments, we brought 
those to Council on February 18th and they tabled the item to discuss as a future meeting. 

No action taken.  

14. Announcements. 
� Chairperson Pavlovsky announced that the Knights of Columbus Fish Fry will begin next Friday.  

Tickets are available at the door and it is $9.00 every Friday during Lent. 

15.  Adjournment. 
There being no further discussion, Chairperson Pavlovsky adjourned the Rosenberg Planning Commission 
Meeting at 6:59 p.m. 

______________________________ 
Renée LeLaurin 

Secretary II 

reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION 
 
March 26, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

6 Selection of Planning Commission Representative for the Business 
Assistance Grant Review Committee 

 
MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on appointment of a Planning Commission representative to serve on the 
Business Assistance Grant Review Committee. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends the Commissioners select a representative to serve on the Business Assistance Grant 
Review Committee. 
 

MUD # City/ETJ ELECTION DISTRICT 
N/A N/A N/A 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

1. Resolution No. R-1770 – 03-18-14 
 

APPROVAL 

Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director of Community 
Development 

Reviewed by:   

      Executive Director of Community Development 

  X  Assistant Economic Development Director RK/rl 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
At the Regular City Council Meeting on March 18, 2014, the City Council adopted revisions to the Business 
Assistance Grant Program (Program), formerly known as the Avenue H Business Assistance Grant Program.  
The Program was expanded to include all businesses within the City Limits and also increased the 
reimbursement grant maximum from $2,500 to $10,000 for qualifying improvements. 
 
Another component of the Program is the establishment of the Business Assistance Grant Review Committee 
(Review Committee) to evaluate grant applications and select grant award recipients based on the Guidelines 
and Criteria, attached as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1770.  The Review Committee is to be comprised of a 
representative from the City Council, Rosenberg Development Corporation, Rosenberg Image Committee, West 
Fort Bend Management District, and the Rosenberg Planning Commission.  The meetings are anticipated to be 
held on a monthly basis, depending on the applications received, and the meeting date and time will be 
determined once the Review Committee members have been selected. 
 
This Agenda item gives the Planning Commission an opportunity to review the Program and nominate a 
representative to serve on the Business Assistance Grant Review Committee.  
  
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1770

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, REGARDING THE GUIDELINES AND
CRITERIA, GRANT APPLICATION AND APPLICATION FOR APPEAL
REQUEST FOR THE CITY OF ROSENBERG BUSINESS ASSISTANCE
GRANT PROGRAM.

* * * * *

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG:

Section 1. The Guidelines and Criteria, Grant Application, and Application for

Appeal Request for the City of Rosenberg Business Assistance Program are hereby

approved. Copies of such documents are attached hereto as Exhibit "A", Exhibit "B",

and Exhibit "C", and made a part hereof for all purposes. -th M. t

PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this~ day of~ 2014.

ATTEST:

£~&.v~_
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary

APPROVED:



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1770
Page 1 of 6

BUSINESS ASSISTANCE GRANT PROGRAM
GUIDELINES AND CRITERIA

Section 1. Sponsor

City of Rosenberg.

Section 2. Purpose

The purpose of this Program is to enhance the economic vitality of the City of Rosenberg by encouraging
visually appealing physical improvements to local business establishments.

Section 3. Grant Type

Grants provided are Reimbursement Grants, such grants being a cash match for funds disbursed by an
Applicant, and are in amounts not to exceed those provided under Section 6, "Type of Grants" below. In
kind contributions may not be used as a part or whole of an Applicant's match. Only Applicant's cash
expenditures may be used as a grant match.

Section 4. Funding Cycle

Funding cycles shall be October 1st through September 30th
• For each funding cycle, the City shall

designate an amount of funding for that cycle. Upon depletion of those funds, the City will be under no
obligation to fund additional grants. Likewise, the City is under no obligation to establish future cycles.

Section 5. Eligibility

A. Any new or existing business within the Rosenberg City Limits.

B. Business facilities also serving as a residence are not eligible.

C. Business facilities and/or properties which have outstanding financial obligations to the City of
Rosenberg, such as liens, court fines, City utility bills, or delinquent property taxes are not eligible.

D. Business facilities and/or property owners which have an ongoing lawsuit or are in any way parties
to litigation against the City of Rosenberg are not eligible.

Section 6. Type of Grants

A. FA<;ADE IMPROVEMENT:

B. SIGN IMPROVEMENTS:

Improvements to storefronts, including, but not limited to, items
such as painting, reconstruction, and remodeling.

Up to a 50% matching grant with maximum of $10,000.

New signs, and renovation or removal of existing signs.

Up to a 50% matching grant with a maximum of
$10,000.

Page 10f6



C. PROPERTY IMPROVEMENT:

D. DEMOLITION:

Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1770
Page 2 of6

Items such as landscaping (if irrigated and maintained or
warranted for one year), lighting, sidewalk and driveway
improvements, parking lot improvements.

Up to a 50% matching grant with a maximum of
$10,000.

Demolition ofabandoned signs and structures.

Up to a 50% matching grant with a maximum of
$10,000.

Section 7. Guidelines

A. Proof of ownership will be required of Applicants operating a business in an owned facility or
owners of a business facility.

B. An Applicant operating in a leased facility must apply jointly with property owner. Copies of a
lease agreement and proof of ownership will be required.

C. Grant funding will be limited to one (1) grant to anyone (1) Applicant during a calendar year.-

D. Improvements shall be made in accordance with project drawings, specifications, and/or
information provided in the application, such having been previously approved by the City.
Failure to do so will render the Applicant ineligible to receive grant funding. Any modifications
must first receive the written approval of the City or its designee. Failure to do so will likewise
render the Applicant ineligible to receive grant funding.

E. Applicant is obligated to obtain all applicable permits related to the improvement project. Failure
to do so will render the Applicant ineligible for grant funding.

F. The improvements, as presented in the application, must be completed in their entirety.
Incomplete improvements will render the Applicant ineligible for grant funding.

G. Upon approval of a grant application, and during the implementation of the improvements, a
representative or representatives of the City shall have the right of access to inspect the work in
progress.

H. Improvements may not commence prior to having received written approval for a grant from the
City.

I. In order to be eligible to receive the grant funding, improvements must be completed within six (6)
months of receiving grant approval from the City.

J. All landscaping installed in the scope ofthe project must be irrigated and maintained or warrantied
by the Applicant for minimum of one (1) year from the date of installation.

1. If landscaping is considered as part of the grant request, an underground irrigation system
shall be employed and said landscaping shall be irrigated and maintained. Trees, plants,

Page 2 of6



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1770
Page 3 of 6

shrubs, or groundcover, as approved in the grant proposal, shall be replaced if they become
diseased, damaged, or die.

K. All applications must contain a cost estimate (bid) from a minimum of two (2) qualified
contractors or suppliers.

L. Labor provided by the Applicant or hislher employees may not be included in the cost estimate of
the project and is not reimbursable through this Program.

Section 8. Application & Approval

1. Applications must be made on a form provided by the City, and may be obtained at the Rosenberg
City Hall, 2110 4th Street, Rosenberg, Texas 77471, or on the City website at
www.cLrosenberg.tx.us.

2. Applications will be considered on a monthly basis and must be submitted by the last day of each
month.

3. Monthly consideration of applications may be delayed in the event the City elects for any reason
not to consider grant applications for any particular month.

4. One (1) original and one (1) copy of an application must be submitted.

5. The City reserves the right to utilize whatever outside resources it deems necessary for assistance
in its decision-making process.

6. Applicants must score a minimum of sixty (60) points on the evaluation guidelines to be eligible
for approval.

7. Applicants will be notified in writing ofthe City's approval or disapproval of an application.

Applicants who have been denied grant funding may appeal the Review Committee's decision to
City Council. Applicants who choose to appeal the Committee's decision must complete the
Application to Appeal and submit the Application to Appeal to the Economic Development
Director, within ten (l0) days from the date of the grant denial. The Committee will, (within 15
days of receipt of the completed Application to Appeal), submit the appeal to City Council for
their review, and the appeal will be placed on City Council's calendar at the first available date.
Applicant will be notified as to when the appeal will be heard by City Council, and the applicant
will have the opportunity to address City Council at that time. Applicant will be notified in
writing of the City Council's decision.

8. The City may award Applicant a grant with certain provisions, conditions, or other requirements as
it may from time to time deem appropriate.

9. The City of Rosenberg reserves unto itself the absolute right of discretion in deciding whether or
not to approve a grant relative to this application. The Applicant accepts that the all decisions
relating to the award of grant funds involves subjective judgments on the part of the decision
making entity related to the aesthetics of the proposed project and the granting of award funds for
said project.

Page 3 of6



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1770
Page 4 of6

10. The City reserves the right to waive any requirement(s) herein contained, and/or add any
requirements(s) it deems to appropriate in making its determination ofapproval or disapproval ofa
grant(s) application.

11. Application shall include photos of the existing conditions to be improved.

Section 9. Evaluation Criteria Standards

The following factors shall be considered in determining whether or not to award a grant. Grant
applications must score a minimum of sixty (60) points to be considered for funding. A score of sixty
(60) or more points does not guarantee funding. All funding is contingent on remaining funds availability.

The evaluation matrix is a guide to assist the Review Committee in the evaluation process. The business
Applicant does not need to address each criterion in the impact standard to receive the total number of
allotted points. The criteria within each impact standard are examples of the types of criteria the Review
Committee may consider:

Visual Impact
• Improvement in the attractiveness of the location and

the level of blight or deterioration removed;
• Paint color/sign chosen are tasteful and consistent with

surrounding businesses;
• Paint chips/sign materials/landscaping materials are

submitted with application and final project reflects
what was submitted and approved;

• Level of improvements' impact on overall appearance
of facility.

• Productive life of improvements.
Economic Impact

• Amount of additional funding expended by business;
• Appropriateness of business to overall economic

development in the surrounding neighborhood;
• Traffic level of roadways adjacent to improvement;
• Mitigation of health and safety issues;
• Reuse ofvacant or underutilized property.

Historical/Community 1mpact
• Level of historical significance of building/area being

improved;
• Level of value added to the community by the business;
• Level of interest/desire for business in the community;
• Level of attention to historical architecture (if

applicable).
Location Impact

• Business located on Avenue H (between Bamore Road
and Lane Drive).

Possible
Points

30

25

25

20

Awarded
Points

Page 40f6



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1770
Page 5 of 6

Section 10. Funding

A. Funding will only be provided on a reimbursement basis upon the completion of the project in
accordance with Section 7D above and following an on-site inspection of the improvements.

B. The City shall be granted the right to inspect the improvement work in progress and upon
completion.

C. Applicant shall provide the City with written notification of project completion. Such notification
shall include a letter signed by the Applicant stating that all improvements have been completed in
accordance with the application and/or approved modifications, and that full payments has been
made for all labor and materials involved in the project. Also included in such notification shall be
such documents as, but not limited to, paid receipts for materials and labor, permits, inspection
reports, project photographs, or any other items the City may reasonably deem necessary for
determining the successful completion of the project.

D. Upon receipt of a notification of completion, an on-site inspection shall be made by a
representative or representatives of the City to confirm, completion in accordance with the
application and/or approved modifications, such inspection shall not be considered in any way as a
reflection of the City's approval on the quality, safety, or reliability of the improvements, such
being the sole responsibility ofApplicant.

E. At the next regular Review Committee meeting following the on-site inspection, a written
statement by the city representatives shall be provided to the Review Committee testifying either
to (1) compliant project completion, or (2) non-compliant project completion. In the event of a
"non-compliant report", the Review Committee will review the findings, and if in agreement with
the report, a letter shall be issued to the Applicant stating the area/areas of non-compliance. The
project shall be subject to re-inspection to confirm the successful completion of the project.
Failure to correct the area/areas of non-compliance within thirty (30 ) days of the date of the "non
compliant letter" shall be cause for cancellation of the grant.

F. At the regular meeting at which a "compliant" inspection report is provided, a motion to authorize
funding will be adopted. Issuance of payment shall take place within ten (10) days of the funding
authorization.

G. In order to receive approval ofa reimbursement, all projects should be completed by August 15 of
the budget year in which the grant was approved.

Section 11. Review Committee

The Business Assistance Grant Review Committee (Review Committee) will review and score all
applications. Said Review Committee will be comprised of five (5) members, with a representative from
each of the following: Rosenberg City Council, the Rosenberg Image Committee, the Rosenberg
Development Corporation, the West Fort Bend Management District, and the Rosenberg Planning
Commission. The Economic Development Director for the City will serve as the staff liaison for the
Review Committee. Each member shall be chosen by the entity on which they currently serve.

Section 12. Amendment
Page 5 of6



Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1770
Page 6 of 6

The City Council reserves unto itself the right to amend these Guidelines and Criteria as it may from time
to time find desirable.

Section 13. Notice

A. THE PROVISION OR DELIVERY OF THESE GUIDELINES AND CRITERIA TO AN
INTERESTED PARTY DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN OFFER OF AN IMPROVEMENT
GRANT TO THAT PARTY.

B. THE ADOPTION OF THESE GUIDELINES AND CRITERIA DOES NOT LIMIT THE
DISCRETION OF THE CITY TO DECIDE WHETHER TO PROVIDE OR NOT PROVIDE A
GRANT TO AN APPLICANT, WHICH ABSOLUTE RIGHT OF DISCRETION THE CITY
RESERVES UNTO ITSELF, WHETHER OR NOT SUCH DISCRETION MAYBE DEEMED
ARBITRARY OR WITHOUT BASIS IN FACT.

C. THE ADOPTION OF THESE GUIDELINES AND CRITERIA DOES NOT CREATE ANY
PROPERTY, CONTRACT, OR OTHER LEGAL RIGHTS IN ANY PERSON TO HAVE THE
CITY PROVIDE GRANT FUNDING.

D. THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS SHALL GOVERN THE INTERPRETATION,
VALIDITY, PERFORMANCE, AND ENFORCEMENT OF THIS BUSINESS ASSISTANCE
GRANT PROGRAM. IF ANY PROVISION OF THIS PROGRAM SHALL BE HELD TO BE
INVAILD OR UNENFORCEABLE, THE VALIDITY AND ENFORCEABILITY OF THE
REMAINING PROVISIONS OF THIS PROGRAM SHALL NOT BE AFFECTED THEREBY.

E. THE CITY, ITS EMPLOYEES, AND ITS AGENTS, DO NOT ATTEST TO THE QUALITY,
SAFETY, OR CONSTRUCTION OF A PROJECT ELIGIBLE FOR, OR RECEIVING GRANT
FUNDING. THEREFORE, THE CITY, ITS EMPLOYEES, AND AGENTS SHALL BE HELD
HARMLESS BY THE APPLICANT/APPLICANTS FOR ANY AND ALL DAMAGES
ASSOCIATED WITH THE PLANNING, CONSTRUCTION, AND SUBSEQUENT
EXISTENCE OF ANY PROJECT WHOSE APPLICATION HAS BEEN APPROVED, OR HAS
RECEIVED ACTUAL GRANT FUNDING.

Page 6 of6



Exhibit "8" to Resolution No. R-1770
Page 1 of 8

Business Assistance Grant Program Agreement

The Rosenberg City Council has adopted policies to implement reasonable measures, as are permitted by law, to
attract and promote the development of new and expanded business enterprises within the City, including a
Business Assistance Grant Program. The City ("Grantor") hereby enters into an agreement with <BUSINESS NAME>
("Grantee") for an economic development grant in the amount of <$GRANT AMOUNT>, in exchange for
improvements made to property, as specified in the attached application. The terms of this agreement are as
follows:

1. The Company and/or its contractors shall perform all project work in accordance with the Business
Assistance Grant Project Guidelines and Criteria as well as within the parameters enumerated in the
submitted grant application.

2. Upon completion of the project and verification by the grant committee or a committee designee of
the improvement's adherence to the project Guidelines and Criteria and submitted application, the
City will reimburse the business owner as per the terms of the project guidelines.

3. The program Guidelines and Criteria as well as a copy of the submitted grant application are included
as attachments to this agreement.

4. The Grantee understands and agrees that if the Grantee is convicted of a violation under 8 U.s.c.
Section 1324a(f), the Grantee will reimburse the Grantor the total amount of any payment or
incentive made to, or on behalf of, the Grantee within one hundred twenty (120) days after the
conviction and City of Rosenberg's notification to the Grantee of the exercise of City's
reimbursement remedy.

The Grantee certifies that the above information, and all information contained in the grant application are correct
and accurate, and furthermore, the Grantee understand that if he/she has misrepresented anything on this form or
grant application, the City of Rosenberg is under no obligation to provide reimbursement funds. Furthermore, if
reimbursement funds have already been distributed, the Grantee will be liable to reimburse the City of Rosenberg
for any amount reimbursed to it, and that it will forfeit any future eligibility for grant funds. The Grantor certifies
that the funds approved are available and have been reserved solely for the purpose provided in this agreement.

PLEASE SUBMIT A COMPLETED W-9 FORM WITH YOUR EXECUTED GRANT AGREEMENT.

For the Grantee:

Signed: _

Printed Name: _

For the Grantor:

Signed: _

Printed Name: _

Date: _

Title: _

Date: _

Title: _



Exhibit "8" to Resolution No. R-1770
Page 2 of 8

Business Assistance Grant Program

APPLICAnON
TO

CITY OF ROSENBERG

Please Note:

1. Please review the Business Assistance Grant Program guidelines and criteria prior to the
submission ofa grant application.

2. Submit the original and one (1) copy ofthe completed application.

3. Allparties having an ownership in the business or facility must be parties to this application.

4. Applications must be submittedjointly by both the lessee and the lessor for businesses operating
in leasedfacilities.

5. Applications must be submitted by the last business day ofthe quarter in order to be eligible for
consideration the following month.

6. Applications must contain a minimum oftwo (2) cost estimates from qualified contractors and/or
suppliers.

7. Applications may be submitted to and additional information obtainedfrom:

Interim Economic Development Director
City ofRosenberg
P.O. Box 32
Rosenberg, TX 77471-0032
Office: 832.595.3330
rachellek@ci.rosenberg.tx.lls



Exhibit "B" to Resoluti n No. R·1770
Page 3 of8 /

1!-.J'e;t!J:'!:(f/
[CJ

(PLEASE PRINT IN BLUE/BLACK INK OR TYPE)

1. Applicant/Applicants' name(s) _

2. Type of grant(s) being requested (check all that apply):

Fayade D Sign D Property Improvement D Demolition D

3. Business name

4. Mailing address

5. Applicant contact: Phone Fax

E-mail

6. Physical address of property for which grant is being requested

Partnership D7. This business is a: Sole proprietorship D
Other _

(Please state)

Corporation D

A. Please provide applicable business documentation such as DBA, Partnership Agreement, Corporate
Charter, etc.

8. Briefdescription of business activity (Attach additional sheets, if necessary)

9. Is the property owned or leased by the Applicant? Owned D
A. Ifowned, please provide proofof ownership

Leased D

B. If leased:
a. Please provide a copy ofthe lease agreement
b. Name oflessor-------------------
c. Address of lessor------------------
d. Lessor contact: Phone E-mail-------

10. Date business established in Rosenberg, TX" _

11. Number of employees _

City ofRosenberg Business Assistance Grant Program

Page 3 of8



Exhibit "8" to Resoluti n No. R-1770
Page 4 ofa /"

(!':.\'eltfJ:fl(tfteC/

12. Please provide a description of the proposed project
(Attach additional sheets, if necessary, and please consider review criteria to ensure the committee has all relevant
information on your project)

A. For Facade Improvements: Please list the colors you plan to use and provide color chip samples
from a paint supply store (such as Sherwin Williams, Benjamin Moore, etc.)
Colors:--------------------------
B. For Sign Improvements: Please list the colors you plan to use and provide color chip samples
Colors:--------------------------
C. For Property Improvements: Please provide any additional information which would further help
describe this project.

D. For Demolitions: Please provide any additional information which would further describe this
project.

E. General: Please provide any additional materials which will assist with the description ofyour
project (photographs, plans, etc.).

13. Amount ofgrant funds requested (Maximum of$IO,OOO) _

14. Total cost of the project. _

A. Labor cost------------------------
B. Materials Cost----------------------

15. Estimated start date of project. _

16. Estimated completion date of project _

17. Please attach photos of the existing conditions.

18. Please provide any additional information you believe to be important concerning this grant application on
pages attached for that purpose.

City ofRosenberg Business Assistance Grant Program

Page 4 of8



I (we) the undersigned do hereby acknowledge and/or certifY the following:

Exhibit "8" to Resoluti
Page 5 of 8

n No. R-1770

(, ~Cl. !;t/teC/'

1. Prior to the submission of this application, a copy of the "Guidelines and Criteria" for the Business Assistance Grant program
has been obtained, reviewed and clearly understood.

Initials

2. The submission of this Application does not create any property, contract or other legal rights in any person or entity to have
the Grantor provide grant funding.

Initials

3. If the grant funding is approved, full compliance will be maintained with all the provisions of the "Guidelines and Criteria",
and/or special provisions attached as part of the grant. Failure to do so can be grounds for ineligibility to receive previously
approved grant funding.

Initials

4. If grant funding is approved, a designee(s) of the City of Rosenberg shall have the right to inspect the work in progress, as well
as the completed improvements.

Initials

5. All grant funding is contingent upon the continued availability of grant funds. The City of Rosenberg reserves the right to
decrease funding or cancel the grant program at its sole discretion.

Initials

6. The City of Rosenberg reserves unto itself its absolute right of discretion in deciding whether or not to approve a grant relative
to this application. The Applicant accepts that the all decisions relating to the award of grant funds involve subjective
judgments, on the part of the decision-making entity, related to the aesthetics of the proposed project and the granting of award
funds for said project. The City of Rosenberg reserves the right to waive or add to any of the requirements of a grant
application as it deems necessary.

Initials

7. The City of Rosenberg, its employees and its agents shall be held harmless for any damages, both personal and property, which
may result directly or indirectly from any incident associated with subject project of this Application both during and after
construction, and that the City of Rosenberg, its employees, and its agents shall not be liable for any debts incurred in
association with the execution and completion of the subject project of this Application, and further that I (we) the
Applicant/Applicants assume all responsibility for any and all of the aforementioned liabilities.

Initials

8. The laws of the State of Texas shall govern the interpretation, validity, performance and enforcement of the "Guidelines and
Criteria", and this Application, and that if any provision or provisions of these should be held invalid or unenforceable, the
validity and enforceability ofthe remaining provisions shall not be affected thereby.

Initials

9. The information provided in this Application has been provided voluntarily, and may be relied on as being true and correct, and
that the City of Rosenberg may rely on the signatures affixed hereto as if the same had been signed by Applicant(s) before a
Notary Public or other authorized officer to administer oaths and to take acknowledgements.

Initials

City ofRosenberg Business Assistance Grant Program

Page 5 of8



Exhibit "B" to Resoluti No. R-1770
Page 6 of8 /"

IJ-:. -ello:~(t/
tCJ

10. State law requires that, by signing and submitting this application, you certify that the company, its branches, divisions and
departments (company) do not and will not knowingly employ an undocumented worker. An agreement with the company will
require the company to repay the total amount of the public benefit received with interest at the rate and according to the terms
of the agreement if the company is convicted of a violation under 8 U.S.C. Section 1324a (t). Repayment will be due no later
than the 120th day after the date the City notifies the company of the violation as provided in the agreement.

An undocumented worker is an individual who, at the time of employment, is not:
a. lawfully admitted for permanent residence to the United States; or
b. authorized under law to be employed in that manner in the United States.

Initials

City ofRosenberg Business Assistance Grant Program

Page 6 of8



APPLICANT SIGNATURES

Signed this _ day of ,201
(Print Applicant Signature)

(Applicant Signature)

Signed this _ day of ,201
(Print Property Owner Signature)

(Property Owner Signature)

City ofRosenberg Business Assistance Grant Program

Page 70f8

No. R-1770

{; '·CI. (;r;ce-:y



Exhibit "B" to Resoluti n No. R/:;-1770
Page 8 ot8

flS '11.JJyl(f/
te0

APPLICATION CHECKLIST

1. Original and one copy ofapplication

2. All owners as parties to the application

3. Lessor and lessee as parties to the application

4. Business documentation (DBA, Corp. Charter, etc.)

5. Property proofofownership

6. Copy of lease agreement

7. Project plans, specifications, photographs, etc.

8. Project cost estimates (2 Bids)

9. Photos ofexisting conditions

City ofRosenberg Business Assistance Grant Program

Page 8 of8



Exhibit "C" to Resolu .
Page 1 of2

Business Assistance Grant Program
Appeal Request

No. R-1770

~,elf.f1

Applicant/Applicants' Name(s) _

Business Name _

Mailing Address, _

Applicant Contact: Phone _ Fax'-------

E-mail-----------------
Physical address of property for which grant was being requested:

Date of Grant Application:

Amount of Requested Award: _

Date Grant Denied: _

I filed a grant application, under the conditions outlined in the Rosenberg Business Assistance Grant
Application and Guidelines, with the Rosenberg Business Assistance Grant Review Committee. My grant
was denied. With my signature below, I request my grant application be appealed to City Council for their
consideration. (Please initial each statement and sign below)

___ I understand City Council's decision is final and may not be appealed further.

___ I understand I have 10 business days from the date the grant was denied to request an appeal
(via email date or postmarked date).

___ I understand the Economic Development Director has 15 business days from the date of receipt
to submit my appeal to City Council, and my appeal will be placed on City Council calendar for
review at the first available meeting date as determined by the City Manager's Office.

___ I understand I will be informed by City staff in writing of the date of the appeal review by City
Council, and I will be given an opportunity to address Council if I so choose.

___ I have included all documents as described on page two of this appeal application and my
Application to Appeal is complete and timely.

Applicant's Signature Date

1
Applications for Appeal should be mailed, delivered, or emailed to:
Interim Economic Development Director
City of Rosenberg
PO Box 32, 2110 4th Street
Rosenberg, Texas 77471
Email rachellek@cLrosenberg.tx.us



Exhibit "C" to Resoluti
Page 2 of2

Please submit the following with your request for appeal:

1. Initial application for Business Assistance Grant Program (with all attachments and
included documentation)

2. Letter of Denial from the City of Rosenberg's Business Assistance Grant Program
Review Committee.

3. A personal statement from you as to why you believe your grant application should be
approved. Please address each area outlined in the Letter of Denial from the Review
Committee.

2
Applications for Appeal should be mailed, delivered, or emailed to:
Interim Economic Development Director
City of Rosenberg
PO Box 32, 2110 4th Street
Rosenberg, Texas 77471
Email rachellek@cLrosenberg.tx.us



PLANNING COMMISSION COMMUNICATION 
 
March 26, 2014 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

7 Staff Report of Current Activities and Requests for Future Agenda Items 
 
MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on the Staff Report of Current Activities and requests for future agenda items. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

N/A 
 

MUD # City/ETJ ELECTION DISTRICT 
N/A N/A N/A 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 

1. None 
 

APPROVAL 

Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP  
Executive Director of Community 
Development 

Reviewed by:   

     City Engineer  

 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Staff Report of Current Activities consists of projects that staff is currently working on as well as other 
updates that are relevant to the Planning Commission.  This item also allows the Planning Commission the 
opportunity to request that items be placed on future agendas. 
 
At the meeting, staff will provide updates on the Comprehensive Plan update process and “Sign” 
Ordinance amendments, which are the main items the Planning Department is focused on at this time.  As 
discussed at the last Planning Commission meeting, a Professional Services/Engineering Project Review 
Committee (Committee) meeting was held on February 11, 2014, to discuss consultants’ qualifications for 
the Comprehensive Plan update.  The Committee unanimously recommended to City Council that Kendig 
Keast Collaborative be selected to complete the project.  A contract must be approved by City Council to 
move forward.  This is a budgeted project.  Staff has been coordinating with the consultant and expects 
the item to go to City Council in the April/May timeframe. 
 
Staff continues to work on completing the “Sign” Ordinance amendments that have been prioritized by City 
Council.  As previously discussed, on February 18, 2014, an Ordinance was presented to City Council 
regarding maximum freestanding sign heights and sizes for Avenues H and I and State Highway 36.  The 
Ordinance was tabled by City Council and will be reviewed at a future meeting.
  
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 8 
 

Announcements. 
 



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 9 
 

Adjournment. 
 


	Regular Planning Commission Meeting Agenda - 03-26-14
	1 - Minutes
	Planning Commission Meeting Minutes - 02-26-14

	2 - Final Plat of Bonbrook Plantation North Section Ten
	Final Plat of Bonbrook Plantation North Section Ten
	Preliminary Plat of Bonbrook Plantation North Section Ten - 01-22-14
	Land Plan for Bonbrook Plantation - 09-25-07
	Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt - 01-22-14

	3 - Final Plat of Bonbrook Plantation South Section Five
	Final Plat of Bonbrook Plantation South Section Five
	Preliminary Plat of Bonbrook Plantation South Section Five - 01-22-14
	Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt - 01-22-14

	4 - Final Plat of Walnut Creek Section Ten
	Final Plat of Walnut Creek Section Ten
	Preliminary Plat of Walnut Creek Section Ten - 03-27-13
	Land Plan for Walnut Creek
	Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt - 09-25-13 
	Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt - 03-27-13

	5 - Revised 2014 Meeting Schedule and Submittal Deadlines Calendar
	Planning Commission Meetings and Submittal Deadlines 2014 - Revised Start Time
	Planning Commission Meetings and Submittal Deadlines 2014 - Revised Date and Start Time
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 01-21-14
	Planning Commission Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 02-26-14
	Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt - 12-18-13
	Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt - 11-20-13

	6 - Appointment for Business Assistance Committee
	Resolution No. R-1770 - 03-18-14

	7 - Staff Report and Requests for Future Agenda Items
	8 - Announcements
	9 - Adjournment

